
A G E N D A
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
July 24, 2019
4:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. MINUTES

1. June 5, 2019 Meeting Minutes

D. OLD BUSINESS

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. C­19­0055. Monticello Avenue Shops

F. ADJOURNMENT



AGENDA ITEM NO. C.1.

ITEM SUMMARY

DATE: 7/24/2019 

TO: The Development Review Committee 

FROM: Paul D. Holt, III, Secretary

SUBJECT: June 5, 2019 Meeting Minutes

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type
Minutes of the June 5, 2019 DRC
Meeting Minutes

REVIEWERS:

Department Reviewer Action Date
Development Review
Committee Cook, Ellen Approved 7/18/2019 ­ 10:53 AM

Development Review
Committee Holt, Paul Approved 7/18/2019 ­ 1:44 PM

Publication Management Daniel, Martha Approved 7/18/2019 ­ 1:58 PM
Development Review
Committee Secretary, DRC Approved 7/18/2019 ­ 2:13 PM



M I N U T E S
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Building A, Williamsburg, VA 23185
June 5, 2019
5:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Frank Polster called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL

Present:
Frank Polster, Chair
Odessa Dowdy
Jack Haldeman
Danny Schmidt

Staff in Attendance:
Jose Ribeiro, Senior Planner
Thomas Wysong, Senior Planner
Katie Pelletier, Community Development Assistant
Juan Carlos Morgado, Stormwater and Resource Protection Division

C. MINUTES

1. April 17, 2019 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Polster brought the meeting to order and asked if there were any comments regarding the
minutes.

Mr. Schmidt made a motion to approve the April 17, 2019 minutes. The minutes were
approved by a vote of 3­0. Ms. Dowdy abstained from voting since she was absent from the
April 17, 2019 meeting. 

2. May 22, 2019 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Polster stated approval of minutes was not required since the May 22, 2019 meeting
lacked a quorum. 

D. OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. C­19­0036. 8770 Croaker Road ­ Overhead Utility Waiver

Mr. Wysong addressed the Committee and stated that Mr. Michael Foote, on behalf of the
Rudolphi family, has applied for an exception to Section 24­200(c) of the County Zoning
Ordinance which states that all new utilities be placed underground. Section 24­200(c) states
that the Planning Commission can grant an exception based on such factors as voltage
requirements, existing overhead service, existing tree cover, and physical features of the site or
surrounding area. 

Page 1 of 4



M I N U T E S
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Building A, Williamsburg, VA 23185
June 5, 2019
5:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Frank Polster called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL

Present:
Frank Polster, Chair
Odessa Dowdy
Jack Haldeman
Danny Schmidt

Staff in Attendance:
Jose Ribeiro, Senior Planner
Thomas Wysong, Senior Planner
Katie Pelletier, Community Development Assistant
Juan Carlos Morgado, Stormwater and Resource Protection Division

C. MINUTES

1. April 17, 2019 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Polster brought the meeting to order and asked if there were any comments regarding the
minutes.

Mr. Schmidt made a motion to approve the April 17, 2019 minutes. The minutes were
approved by a vote of 3­0. Ms. Dowdy abstained from voting since she was absent from the
April 17, 2019 meeting. 

2. May 22, 2019 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Polster stated approval of minutes was not required since the May 22, 2019 meeting
lacked a quorum. 

D. OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. C­19­0036. 8770 Croaker Road ­ Overhead Utility Waiver

Mr. Wysong addressed the Committee and stated that Mr. Michael Foote, on behalf of the
Rudolphi family, has applied for an exception to Section 24­200(c) of the County Zoning
Ordinance which states that all new utilities be placed underground. Section 24­200(c) states
that the Planning Commission can grant an exception based on such factors as voltage
requirements, existing overhead service, existing tree cover, and physical features of the site or
surrounding area. 

Mr. Wysong explained the Rudolphi family is building a new home on their property at 8770
Croaker Road. Over the past several months they have been working with Dominion Energy
(“Dominion”) to secure an underground easement from the property across the street at 8781
Croaker Road. The purpose of this easement was to allow a buried power line to connect
from the existing pole on the property at 8781 Croaker Road to the Rudolphi property at
8770 Croaker Road. 

Mr. Wysong explained that Dominion was unable to acquire permission for an underground
easement from the owner at 8781 Croaker Road. However, Dominion has an overhead
power line easement on this property. Mr. Wysong stated that Dominion is therefore proposing
to connect an overhead power line from the existing pole on 8781 Croaker Road to an
existing pole located on the Rudolphi property, which he said will need to be upgraded to a
40­foot pole. Mr. Wysong said the portion of the power line connecting to the new house from
this pole will be buried.

Mr. Wysong stated that planning staff visited the site to view the surrounding area and noted
numerous houses and existing overhead power lines. He said they do not expect a vast
increase in voltage or changes to the existing tree cover or character of the area. 

Mr. Wysong said staff finds that the application meets the criteria of the exception language
found in Section 24­200(c) and recommends that the Committee recommends approval of the
application to the Planning Commission.

Mr. Haldeman motioned to recommend approval of Case No. C­19­0036, 8770 Croaker
Road ­ Overhead Utility Waiver, and the Committee approved the motion with a vote of 4­0. 

2. C­18­0082. 7082 Menzels Road Minor Subdivision

Mr. Ribeiro addressed the Committee and stated that Mr. Chase Grogg of LandTech
Resources Inc. has applied on behalf of Ms. Isabell Queijo for a Conceptual Plan depicting a
minor subdivision at 7082 Menzels Road. The applicant is proposing subdivision of nine lots in
two phases: Phase I consisting of Lot Nos. 1­5, and Phase II consisting of Lot Nos. 6­9. Mr.
Ribeiro stated each phase will be platted separately.

Mr. Ribeiro said the property was included in the establishment of the Wright’s Island
Agricultural and Forestal District on November 23, 1999. At the property owner’s request,
however, this property was not included in the 2018 renewal of the District.

Mr. Ribeiro explained as a part of this Conceptual Plan application, the applicant has
requested a subdivision exception for the requirement of a shared driveway for three or more
undeveloped parcels per Section 19­18 of the Subdivision Ordinance. 

Mr. Ribeiro said the Ordinance requires each phase of the development to have one shared
driveway. Displaying the Conceptual Plan layout for the Committee, Mr. Ribeiro explained the
applicant is proposing one shared driveway serving Lot Nos. 3­7 and one shared driveway
serving Lot Nos. 8­9. He stated the applicant is requesting individual driveways for Lot Nos.
1 and 2, and these are the subject of the shared driveway exception request.

Mr. Ribeiro told the Committee that staff evaluated the proposed Lot No. 1 against the
subdivision exception criteria and found that its physical separation from the other parcels by
Little Creek Dam Road makes the requirement for a shared driveway impractical. He said in
this instance staff finds that the shared driveway requirement would cause substantial injustice
or hardship. 

Page 2 of 4



M I N U T E S
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Building A, Williamsburg, VA 23185
June 5, 2019
5:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Frank Polster called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL

Present:
Frank Polster, Chair
Odessa Dowdy
Jack Haldeman
Danny Schmidt

Staff in Attendance:
Jose Ribeiro, Senior Planner
Thomas Wysong, Senior Planner
Katie Pelletier, Community Development Assistant
Juan Carlos Morgado, Stormwater and Resource Protection Division

C. MINUTES

1. April 17, 2019 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Polster brought the meeting to order and asked if there were any comments regarding the
minutes.

Mr. Schmidt made a motion to approve the April 17, 2019 minutes. The minutes were
approved by a vote of 3­0. Ms. Dowdy abstained from voting since she was absent from the
April 17, 2019 meeting. 

2. May 22, 2019 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Polster stated approval of minutes was not required since the May 22, 2019 meeting
lacked a quorum. 

D. OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. C­19­0036. 8770 Croaker Road ­ Overhead Utility Waiver

Mr. Wysong addressed the Committee and stated that Mr. Michael Foote, on behalf of the
Rudolphi family, has applied for an exception to Section 24­200(c) of the County Zoning
Ordinance which states that all new utilities be placed underground. Section 24­200(c) states
that the Planning Commission can grant an exception based on such factors as voltage
requirements, existing overhead service, existing tree cover, and physical features of the site or
surrounding area. 

Mr. Wysong explained the Rudolphi family is building a new home on their property at 8770
Croaker Road. Over the past several months they have been working with Dominion Energy
(“Dominion”) to secure an underground easement from the property across the street at 8781
Croaker Road. The purpose of this easement was to allow a buried power line to connect
from the existing pole on the property at 8781 Croaker Road to the Rudolphi property at
8770 Croaker Road. 

Mr. Wysong explained that Dominion was unable to acquire permission for an underground
easement from the owner at 8781 Croaker Road. However, Dominion has an overhead
power line easement on this property. Mr. Wysong stated that Dominion is therefore proposing
to connect an overhead power line from the existing pole on 8781 Croaker Road to an
existing pole located on the Rudolphi property, which he said will need to be upgraded to a
40­foot pole. Mr. Wysong said the portion of the power line connecting to the new house from
this pole will be buried.

Mr. Wysong stated that planning staff visited the site to view the surrounding area and noted
numerous houses and existing overhead power lines. He said they do not expect a vast
increase in voltage or changes to the existing tree cover or character of the area. 

Mr. Wysong said staff finds that the application meets the criteria of the exception language
found in Section 24­200(c) and recommends that the Committee recommends approval of the
application to the Planning Commission.

Mr. Haldeman motioned to recommend approval of Case No. C­19­0036, 8770 Croaker
Road ­ Overhead Utility Waiver, and the Committee approved the motion with a vote of 4­0. 

2. C­18­0082. 7082 Menzels Road Minor Subdivision

Mr. Ribeiro addressed the Committee and stated that Mr. Chase Grogg of LandTech
Resources Inc. has applied on behalf of Ms. Isabell Queijo for a Conceptual Plan depicting a
minor subdivision at 7082 Menzels Road. The applicant is proposing subdivision of nine lots in
two phases: Phase I consisting of Lot Nos. 1­5, and Phase II consisting of Lot Nos. 6­9. Mr.
Ribeiro stated each phase will be platted separately.

Mr. Ribeiro said the property was included in the establishment of the Wright’s Island
Agricultural and Forestal District on November 23, 1999. At the property owner’s request,
however, this property was not included in the 2018 renewal of the District.

Mr. Ribeiro explained as a part of this Conceptual Plan application, the applicant has
requested a subdivision exception for the requirement of a shared driveway for three or more
undeveloped parcels per Section 19­18 of the Subdivision Ordinance. 

Mr. Ribeiro said the Ordinance requires each phase of the development to have one shared
driveway. Displaying the Conceptual Plan layout for the Committee, Mr. Ribeiro explained the
applicant is proposing one shared driveway serving Lot Nos. 3­7 and one shared driveway
serving Lot Nos. 8­9. He stated the applicant is requesting individual driveways for Lot Nos.
1 and 2, and these are the subject of the shared driveway exception request.

Mr. Ribeiro told the Committee that staff evaluated the proposed Lot No. 1 against the
subdivision exception criteria and found that its physical separation from the other parcels by
Little Creek Dam Road makes the requirement for a shared driveway impractical. He said in
this instance staff finds that the shared driveway requirement would cause substantial injustice
or hardship. 

Regarding proposed Lot No. 2, Mr. Ribeiro said staff finds nothing unusual about the
dimensions, building area, or topography and nothing of a nature that would preclude the
placement of a shared driveway. He also noted there appears to be no Resource Protection
Area on the property. Mr. Ribeiro stated that staff does not find a hardship outlined in the
applicant’s document that would meet the hardship standards for proposed Lot No. 2.

Mr. Ribeiro told the Committee that staff recommends that the DRC recommend approval of
the exception request to allow an individual driveway for Lot No. 1 and that the DRC
recommend denial of the exception request to allow an individual driveway for Lot No. 2.

Mr. Haldeman inquired about subdivision limits. 

Mr. Ribeiro answered the Ordinance limits a subdivision to nine parcels. After an initial
subdivision of up to five parcels, there may be further subdivision if one of the parcels has
enough area. However, the parent parcel may only be subdivided into a maximum of nine
parcels.  

Mr. Grogg noted the parent parcel at 7082 Menzels Road is split by Little Creek Dam Road
but is indeed one parcel, not two. 

Mr. Schmidt asked if the shared driveway needs to be asphalt, noting runoff concerns. 

Mr. Ribeiro replied the portion of the driveway that will be shared does need to be asphalt,
but the portion serving each individual parcel could be gravel. 

Mr. Schmidt stated, while he understands staff is following the Ordinance, he has no problem
with the applicant’s proposed driveways and shared driveway exception request. Mr. Schmidt
noted the lack of traffic on Little Creek Dam Road and the great distance between proposed
lots. 

Mr. Steve Martin, also representing the applicant from SMKH Properties, LLC, noted the
parcel has approximately 2,400 feet of road frontage on Little Creek Dam Road. 

Ms. Dowdy asked what staff proposes instead of an individual driveway for Lot No. 2. 

Mr. Ribeiro stated without an exception granted for the Subdivision Ordinance shared
driveway requirements, a driveway would need to split off the shared driveway between Lot
Nos. 3 and 7, paralleling Little Creek Dam Road to reach Lot No. 2. He then reviewed the
five criteria listed in the Ordinance for an exception, specifically a hardship or injustice created
by unusual character of the property such as dimensions or topography, rather than a personal,
financial,  or self­inflicted hardship or injustice. Mr. Ribeiro stated that staff does not view the
property as unique or find conditions preventing the placement of a shared driveway. 

Mr. Haldeman said he recently drove to the area and noted a sharp bend in the road and poor
visibility at the proposed driveway location for Lot No. 2. He expressed concern for potential
increased traffic from future development. 

Mr. Polster asked if there were any further comments or questions. 

Mr. Schmidt said he favors limiting the amount of road surface area and runoff given the
property’s proximity to tidal waterways. He also noted the opportunity in the upcoming
Comprehensive Plan to address concerns regarding development in the area. 

Mr. Haldeman stated he does not feel the Ordinance exception criteria are met for Lot No. 2. 

Page 3 of 4



M I N U T E S
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Building A, Williamsburg, VA 23185
June 5, 2019
5:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Frank Polster called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL

Present:
Frank Polster, Chair
Odessa Dowdy
Jack Haldeman
Danny Schmidt

Staff in Attendance:
Jose Ribeiro, Senior Planner
Thomas Wysong, Senior Planner
Katie Pelletier, Community Development Assistant
Juan Carlos Morgado, Stormwater and Resource Protection Division

C. MINUTES

1. April 17, 2019 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Polster brought the meeting to order and asked if there were any comments regarding the
minutes.

Mr. Schmidt made a motion to approve the April 17, 2019 minutes. The minutes were
approved by a vote of 3­0. Ms. Dowdy abstained from voting since she was absent from the
April 17, 2019 meeting. 

2. May 22, 2019 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Polster stated approval of minutes was not required since the May 22, 2019 meeting
lacked a quorum. 

D. OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. C­19­0036. 8770 Croaker Road ­ Overhead Utility Waiver

Mr. Wysong addressed the Committee and stated that Mr. Michael Foote, on behalf of the
Rudolphi family, has applied for an exception to Section 24­200(c) of the County Zoning
Ordinance which states that all new utilities be placed underground. Section 24­200(c) states
that the Planning Commission can grant an exception based on such factors as voltage
requirements, existing overhead service, existing tree cover, and physical features of the site or
surrounding area. 

Mr. Wysong explained the Rudolphi family is building a new home on their property at 8770
Croaker Road. Over the past several months they have been working with Dominion Energy
(“Dominion”) to secure an underground easement from the property across the street at 8781
Croaker Road. The purpose of this easement was to allow a buried power line to connect
from the existing pole on the property at 8781 Croaker Road to the Rudolphi property at
8770 Croaker Road. 

Mr. Wysong explained that Dominion was unable to acquire permission for an underground
easement from the owner at 8781 Croaker Road. However, Dominion has an overhead
power line easement on this property. Mr. Wysong stated that Dominion is therefore proposing
to connect an overhead power line from the existing pole on 8781 Croaker Road to an
existing pole located on the Rudolphi property, which he said will need to be upgraded to a
40­foot pole. Mr. Wysong said the portion of the power line connecting to the new house from
this pole will be buried.

Mr. Wysong stated that planning staff visited the site to view the surrounding area and noted
numerous houses and existing overhead power lines. He said they do not expect a vast
increase in voltage or changes to the existing tree cover or character of the area. 

Mr. Wysong said staff finds that the application meets the criteria of the exception language
found in Section 24­200(c) and recommends that the Committee recommends approval of the
application to the Planning Commission.

Mr. Haldeman motioned to recommend approval of Case No. C­19­0036, 8770 Croaker
Road ­ Overhead Utility Waiver, and the Committee approved the motion with a vote of 4­0. 

2. C­18­0082. 7082 Menzels Road Minor Subdivision

Mr. Ribeiro addressed the Committee and stated that Mr. Chase Grogg of LandTech
Resources Inc. has applied on behalf of Ms. Isabell Queijo for a Conceptual Plan depicting a
minor subdivision at 7082 Menzels Road. The applicant is proposing subdivision of nine lots in
two phases: Phase I consisting of Lot Nos. 1­5, and Phase II consisting of Lot Nos. 6­9. Mr.
Ribeiro stated each phase will be platted separately.

Mr. Ribeiro said the property was included in the establishment of the Wright’s Island
Agricultural and Forestal District on November 23, 1999. At the property owner’s request,
however, this property was not included in the 2018 renewal of the District.

Mr. Ribeiro explained as a part of this Conceptual Plan application, the applicant has
requested a subdivision exception for the requirement of a shared driveway for three or more
undeveloped parcels per Section 19­18 of the Subdivision Ordinance. 

Mr. Ribeiro said the Ordinance requires each phase of the development to have one shared
driveway. Displaying the Conceptual Plan layout for the Committee, Mr. Ribeiro explained the
applicant is proposing one shared driveway serving Lot Nos. 3­7 and one shared driveway
serving Lot Nos. 8­9. He stated the applicant is requesting individual driveways for Lot Nos.
1 and 2, and these are the subject of the shared driveway exception request.

Mr. Ribeiro told the Committee that staff evaluated the proposed Lot No. 1 against the
subdivision exception criteria and found that its physical separation from the other parcels by
Little Creek Dam Road makes the requirement for a shared driveway impractical. He said in
this instance staff finds that the shared driveway requirement would cause substantial injustice
or hardship. 

Regarding proposed Lot No. 2, Mr. Ribeiro said staff finds nothing unusual about the
dimensions, building area, or topography and nothing of a nature that would preclude the
placement of a shared driveway. He also noted there appears to be no Resource Protection
Area on the property. Mr. Ribeiro stated that staff does not find a hardship outlined in the
applicant’s document that would meet the hardship standards for proposed Lot No. 2.

Mr. Ribeiro told the Committee that staff recommends that the DRC recommend approval of
the exception request to allow an individual driveway for Lot No. 1 and that the DRC
recommend denial of the exception request to allow an individual driveway for Lot No. 2.

Mr. Haldeman inquired about subdivision limits. 

Mr. Ribeiro answered the Ordinance limits a subdivision to nine parcels. After an initial
subdivision of up to five parcels, there may be further subdivision if one of the parcels has
enough area. However, the parent parcel may only be subdivided into a maximum of nine
parcels.  

Mr. Grogg noted the parent parcel at 7082 Menzels Road is split by Little Creek Dam Road
but is indeed one parcel, not two. 

Mr. Schmidt asked if the shared driveway needs to be asphalt, noting runoff concerns. 

Mr. Ribeiro replied the portion of the driveway that will be shared does need to be asphalt,
but the portion serving each individual parcel could be gravel. 

Mr. Schmidt stated, while he understands staff is following the Ordinance, he has no problem
with the applicant’s proposed driveways and shared driveway exception request. Mr. Schmidt
noted the lack of traffic on Little Creek Dam Road and the great distance between proposed
lots. 

Mr. Steve Martin, also representing the applicant from SMKH Properties, LLC, noted the
parcel has approximately 2,400 feet of road frontage on Little Creek Dam Road. 

Ms. Dowdy asked what staff proposes instead of an individual driveway for Lot No. 2. 

Mr. Ribeiro stated without an exception granted for the Subdivision Ordinance shared
driveway requirements, a driveway would need to split off the shared driveway between Lot
Nos. 3 and 7, paralleling Little Creek Dam Road to reach Lot No. 2. He then reviewed the
five criteria listed in the Ordinance for an exception, specifically a hardship or injustice created
by unusual character of the property such as dimensions or topography, rather than a personal,
financial,  or self­inflicted hardship or injustice. Mr. Ribeiro stated that staff does not view the
property as unique or find conditions preventing the placement of a shared driveway. 

Mr. Haldeman said he recently drove to the area and noted a sharp bend in the road and poor
visibility at the proposed driveway location for Lot No. 2. He expressed concern for potential
increased traffic from future development. 

Mr. Polster asked if there were any further comments or questions. 

Mr. Schmidt said he favors limiting the amount of road surface area and runoff given the
property’s proximity to tidal waterways. He also noted the opportunity in the upcoming
Comprehensive Plan to address concerns regarding development in the area. 

Mr. Haldeman stated he does not feel the Ordinance exception criteria are met for Lot No. 2. 

Ms. Dowdy stated she understands the staff position and Ordinance but has concerns
regarding access of Lot No. 2 from the shared driveway. 

Mr. Polster said he wishes for the Committee to be consistent and noted its rationale for
recommending approval for shared driveway exceptions in recent cases with nearby
properties was to limit the amount of street surface due to drainage concerns. He agreed the
issue should be addressed in upcoming Comprehensive Plan discussions. 

Mr. Polster also noted this property was recently removed from an Agricultural and Forestal
District and is now being developed. 

Mr. Grogg commented that the recent case at 7073 Menzels Road included a shared
driveway exception to allow three shared driveways for six lots and one shared driveway for
three remaining lots. Mr. Grogg also stated that, though not required by the Virginia
Department of Transportation (VDOT) for a single driveway, the proposed driveway for Lot
No. 2 would most likely meet VDOT’s sight distance standards.  

Mr. Schmidt noted that these cases are some of the first to be analyzed against the new shared
driveway requirements. 

Mr. Grogg said the shared driveway requirements in the Subdivision Ordinance apply best to
properties with less road frontage where multiple driveways are undesirable. 

Mr. Polster asked if there were any further comments.

With no further comments, Mr. Schmidt made a motion to recommend approval of the
exception request allowing an individual driveway for Lot No. 1. The motion passed with a 4­
0 vote of approval. 

Mr. Schmidt made a motion to recommend approval of the exception request allowing an
individual driveway for Lot No. 2. With one nay vote by Mr. Haldeman, the motion passed
with a 3­1 vote of approval.  

F. ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Polster thanked everyone for attending the meeting and asked for any additional
comments. 

Regarding Case No. C­18­0082, 7082 Menzels Road Minor Subdivision, Mr. Polster
expressed his concern that approximately 90% of the soils in the project area indicate limited
use of the soils for septic tank absorption fields. He said this was of particular concern
because of the proximity of the nine sites to the Newport News water reservoir. 

Mr. Polster noted, however, that this was a Virginia Department of Health issue and, given the
Virginia code that local government has no jurisdiction in the manner, as long as the developer
has a certificate from an engineer certifying the suitability for septic drain fields, it was a non­
issue. Mr. Polster stated he hopes the County can strengthen its Rural Lands Policy and
address key questions and issues with sound evidence during the upcoming Comprehensive
Plan update. 

Mr. Haldeman made a motion to adjourn the meeting, and Mr. Polster adjourned the meeting
at 5:40 p.m. after a unanimous voice vote. 

Page 4 of 4

kpelletier
Typewritten Text
Mr. Frank Polster, Chair

kpelletier
Typewritten Text
Mr. Paul Holt, Secretary

kpelletier
Line

kpelletier
Line



AGENDA ITEM NO. E.1.

ITEM SUMMARY

DATE: 7/24/2019 

TO: The Development Review Committee 

FROM: Tom Leininger, Planner

SUBJECT: C­19­0055. Monticello Avenue Shops

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

Memorandum Cover Memo
Location Map Backup Material
Concept Master Plan Backup Material
Concept Plan Narrative Backup Material

REVIEWERS:

Department Reviewer Action Date
Development Review
Committee Cook, Ellen Approved 7/19/2019 ­ 8:57 AM

Development Review
Committee Holt, Paul Approved 7/19/2019 ­ 9:48 AM

Publication Management Daniel, Martha Approved 7/19/2019 ­ 9:56 AM
Development Review
Committee Holt, Paul Approved 7/19/2019 ­ 9:58 AM



 

 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 

DATE: July 24, 2019 

 

TO: The Development Review Committee 

 

FROM: Tom Leininger, Planner 

 

SUBJECT: Case No. C-19-0055. Monticello Avenue Shops 

          

 

Mr. Jason Grimes of AES has submitted a conceptual plan for rezoning and development of three properties 

located at 4744 Old News Road, 3897 Ironbound Road, and 3905 Ironbound Road. 

 

The three parcels are located between Ironbound Road and Monticello Avenue and are west of Route 199. 

The three parcels combine to approximately 2.75 acres and are currently zoned R-8 and are designated 

Neighborhood Commercial by the 2035 Comprehensive Plan. A limited access break would need to be 

approved by the Virginia Department of Transportation and the Commonwealth Transportation Board to 

allow access on Monticello Avenue at the existing WindsorMeade Way intersection. The applicant is 

proposing to close the existing right-in/right-out intersection located between the project area and 

Monticello Marketplace Shoppes. In 2016, the applicant applied for a conceptual plan, but needed to work 

through the traffic impacts prior to moving forward. This most recent version of the conceptual plan 

proposal shows three uses: retail, restaurant, and a quick service automobile facility. This proposal would 

require a rezoning from R-8 to a commercial zoning district and a Special Use Permit per Section 24-11 of 

the Zoning Ordinance. Based on the current layout of the proposal, some of the building setbacks and 

landscape buffers do not meet the minimum requirements of the Zoning Ordiance. 

 

The applicant has requested that this item be placed on the Development Review Committee (DRC) agenda 

in order to discuss the project and seek input and questions from the DRC members. No action by the DRC 

is required. 

 

 

 

TL/md 

C19-55Monticello-mem 

 

Attachments: 

1. Location Map 

2. Conceptual Master Plan 

3. Narrative of Project 

 



Windsormeade Way Montice
llo Ave

Ironbound Rd

Bradshaw
Ordinary

The Meadows

Monticello
Marketplace

Windsormeade
Marketplace

Minichiello
Villa

D.C. Renick
on Indigo
Dam Road

JCC C-19-0055
Monticello Avenue Shops

« Copyright Commonwealth of Virginia. The data contained herein are the
property of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Distribution of any of these
data to anyone not licensed by the Commonwealth is strictly prohibited.0 500 1,000250

Feet

Proposed Monicello Avenue Shops

AÀ



CONCEPTUAL
PLAN - OPTION 3

R
ev

is
ed

By
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
D

at
e

R
ev

.

Project Contacts:

Project Number:

Scale:

1"=30'

Date:

06/18/19

Sheet Title:

Sheet Number

1 OF 1

JAG

52
48

O
ld

e
To

w
ne

R
oa

d,
Su

ite
1

W
illi

am
sb

ur
g,

Vi
rg

in
ia

23
18

8
Ph

on
e:

(7
57

)2
53

-0
04

0
Fa

x:
(7

57
)2

20
-8

99
4

w
w

w
.a

es
va

.c
om

S
REE

NI
G

NE
G

NITL
US

N
O

C H
am

pt
on

R
oa

ds
|

C
en

tra
lV

irg
in

ia
|

M
id

dl
e

Pe
ni

ns
ul

a

W10509-00

M
O

N
TI

C
EL

LO
AV

EN
U

E
SH

O
PS

C
O

N
C

EP
TU

AL
PL

AN

JA
M

ES
C

IT
Y

C
O

U
N

TY
VI

R
G

IN
IA

OWNERS: LARRY R. COOKE, JUDY HODGES TRUSTEE & EDITH WARD

PARCEL IDS: 3830100002A, 3830100004, 3830100003

SITE AREA: 2.75 AC.±; 119,790 S.F.± (TOTAL)
1.33 AC.±; 57,935 S.F.±
0.51 AC.±; 22,215 S.F.±
0.91 AC.±; 39,640 S.F.±

IMPERVIOUS COVER: 1.49 AC.±; 64,933 S.F.± (54.21% OF SITE)

FLOOR AREA RATIO:  11% / 0.11 (0.60 / 60% MAXIMUM)

CURRENT ZONING: R8 - RURAL RESIDENTIAL

PROPOSED ZONING: B1 - GENERAL BUSINESS

SITE DATA:
REQUIRED PARKING (PER SEC. 24-59):

2 x RESTAURANT - 200 SEATS : 50 SPACES (4 SPACES PER SEAT)
RETAIL (3,168 S.F.) : 13 SPACES (1 SPACE PER 250 S.F.)
MEDICAL OFFICE (3,500 S.F.) : 14 SPACES (1 SPACE PER 250 S.F.)
AUTO SERVICE (1,916 S.F) : 8 SPACES (1 SPACE PER 250 S.F.)

85 SPACES MINIMUM
102 SPACES MAX (120% OF MINIMUM)

PROPOSED PARKING:

96 SHARED SPACES (INCLUDING 4 H.C. ACCESSIBLE SPACES) (113% OF MINIMUM)

PARKING DATA:

S
:\J

O
B

S
\W

10
50

9-
M

on
tic

el
lo

A
ve

nu
e

S
ho

ps
\0

0-
M

on
tic

el
lo

A
ve

nu
e

S
ho

ps
\P

la
nn

in
g\

C
on

ce
pt

ua
l&

P
re

lim
in

ar
y\

W
10

50
9-

00
_C

on
ce

pt
ua

lP
la

n-
O

pt
io

n
3.

dw
g,

7/
19

/2
01

9
3:

23
:1

6
PM

,b
ar

re
tt.

te
rre

ll



Williamsburg Narrative 

Tricor International LLC (Tricor) is proposing to develop a project at (a) 3897 Ironbound Road, (b) 3905 

Ironbound Road and (c) 4744 Old News Road (Subject Site). Tricor is developing the project speculatively 

(i.e. leases have yet to be signed), but has received strong interest from potential tenants. It is 

anticipated that the project will consist of restaurants and general retailers in the form of a multi-tenant 

strip and a quick service automotive facility as a separate structure from the multi-tenant strip as shown 

in the preliminary concept plan. These uses will serve the surrounding residents and compliment the 

Target/Belk-anchored shopping centers across the street and Marketplace Shoppes directly next door.  

Tricor is fully prepared to adhere to the architectural standards of James City County, so the project will 

fit in seamlessly with the surrounding structures.  

Tricor develops and manages their projects directly with in-house staff and maintains their projects in a 

first-class manner. Tricor believes firmly that this project will serve as an amenity to the surrounding 

residents and a benefit to people who travel on Monticello Ave.  


	Meeting Agenda
	June 5, 2019 Meeting Minutes
	C-19-0055. Monticello Avenue Shops

